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ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED
IS COMMITTED TO:

Achieve and Retain
Market Leadership in
Denim Fabric / Garments
Manufacturing

Produce to the Highest
Quality Standards

Excel through Continuous
Improvement

Fulfill and Exceed the
Expectations of our Customers
Be Ethical in its Practices
Operate through Team Work
Ensure a Fair Return

to Stake Holders

Fulfill Social Responsibilities
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 26th Annual General Meeting of Artistic Denim Mills Limited will be held at
premises of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton,
Karachi, on Saturday, October 27, 2018 at 2:30 p.m. to transact the following business.

Ordinary Business

1.
2

3.
4.
5.

To confirm the Minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 22, 2017.

To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, together with
the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

To approve the Cash Dividend @ Rs. 2.50 per share (25%) as recommended by the Board of Directors.
To appoint the Auditors of the Company for the year 2018-2019 and to fix their remuneration.

To transact any other business of the Company with the permission of the Chair.

Special Business

6. To approve / ratify the transactions with Related Parties as disclosed in note No. 39 to the Financial
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 by passing with or without modification(s), the following
resolutions as an Ordinary Resolutions:

"RESOLVED that the related parties transactions with:

(i) Casual Sportswear;

(i) Artistic Apparels (Private) Limited;

(i) Artistic Fabric & Garment Industries (Private) Limited;

(ivy  DL1961 Premium Denim Inc.;

(v) Premium Distributors;

(vi)  Warp Weft LLC;
carried out during the year ended June 30, 2018 be and are hereby approved."

"FURTHER RESOLVED that the Company is also authorized to carry out such transactions including but
not limited to the following related parties' i.e.:

(i) Casual Sportswear;

(i) Artistic Apparels (Private) Limited;

(i) Artistic Fabric & Garment Industries (Private) Limited;

(ivy  DL1961 Premium Denim Inc.;

(v) Premium Distributors;

(vi)  Warp Weft LLC;
in future according to the industry norms and practice.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Karachi: Muhammad Ozair Qureshi

October 05, 2018 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. Closure of Shares Transfer Books:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 19, 2018 to October 27, 2018
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Company's Share Registrar M/s. F. D. Registrar
Services (SMC-Pvt.) Limited, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, I. |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi before the
close of the business on October 18, 2018 will be treated in time for the entitlement of cash dividend
and to attend and vote at the Meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2, Participation in General Meeting:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another member,
as his / her proxy to attend, demand or join in demanding a poll, speak and vote instead of him/her,
and a proxy so appointed shall have such rights, with respect attending, speaking and voting at the
meeting as are available to a member. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Company's
Share Registrar's Office not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

Members or their proxies are required to present their original CNIC or Passport along with the Participant's
.D. and Account Number(s) at the time of attending the Annual General Meeting in order to authenticate
their identity.

Any Individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this Meeting, must bring his / her original
CNIC to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholder's attested CNIC must be attached
with the proxy form. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required
for such purpose.

CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular
1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A For attending the Meeting:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or subaccount holder and / or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, shall
authenticate identity by showing his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of
attending the Meeting.

ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of Meeting.

B. For appointing proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or subaccount holder and / or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit
the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the person whose name, address and CNIC number shall
be mentioned on the form.

i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of Meeting.

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

3. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory Requirement):

In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution
of Dividends) Regulations 2017, a listed company, is required to pay cash dividend to the shareholders
only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In
this regards, Artistic Denim Mills Limited has already sent letters and Electronic Credit Mandate Forms
to the shareholders and also issued notice through publication in newspaper requesting the shareholders
to comply with the requirement of providing their International Bank Account Number (IBAN).
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Those shareholders who have still not provided their IBAN are once again requested to fill in "Electronic
Credit Mandate Form" as reproduced below and send it duly signed along with a copy of valid CNIC to
their respective CDC participant / CDC Investor account services (in case of shareholding in Book Entry
Form) or to the Company's Share Registrar (in case of shareholding in Physical Form).

(i) Shareholders details:
Name of the Shareholder(s)
Folio # / CDS Account No(s)
CNIC No (Copy attached)
Mobile / Landline No.

(ii) Shareholders' Bank details:
Title of Bank Account
International Bank Account Number (IBAN)
Bank's Name
Branch Name and address

In the absence of IBAN, or in case of incomplete details, the Company will have to withhold the cash
dividend according to SECP directives.

4,  Withholding Tax on Dividend:

Currently Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 prescribed following rates for deduction of
withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the Company:

a)  For filers of Income Tax Returns - 15%

b)  For non-filers of Income Tax Returns - 20%

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non filer and tax will
be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder,
in writing as follows, to our Share Registrar, or if not so notified, each joint holder shall be assumed to
have an equal number of shares.

No. of Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
0.0
Company | Folio/CDS Total Shareholding Shareholding
Name | Account No. Sh%?es CNlﬂg?\l% Proportion CNI\ﬂrCrZ]eN% Proportion
* |(No. of shares) “| (No. of shares)

The CNIC / NTN number detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per the
Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from time to time. Since the list
contains only CNIC / NTN number, we will be deducting tax @ 15% where CNIC / NTN number matches
with the list provided by the FBR and in case of no match tax will be deducted at the rate of 20% as Tax
Return Non-Filer.

In this connection, shareholders are hereby requested to provide to our Share Registrar attested copy
of their CNIC / NTN to ascertain and match their CNIC / NTN with the list provided by the FBR for correct
tax deduction from the dividend. In case you have already provided CNIC / NTN please ignore this noftice.

5. Unclaimed Dividend:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), any dividend and / or
share certificate which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it become
due and payable, the Company shall be liable to deposit those unclaimed / unpaid amounts with the
Federal Government after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Act.

_______aaw _____________________________________________________________________|
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

6. Exemption from deduction of Withholding Tax / Zakat:

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced
rate, are requested to submit a valid tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as
the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration
for non-deduction of zakat.

7. Change of Address:

Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the change of address, if any to the Company's Share
Registrar.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business, given as agenda item no. 6 of the
Notice to be transacted at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

ITEM NO. 6 OF THE AGENDA:

Artistic Denim Mills Limited is engaged in manufacture and sale of rope dyed denim fabric, yarn and value added
textile products. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with its associated
companies. Summary of transactions carried out during the year with the associated companies is as follow:

S. No. | Name of Associated Concerned / Nature of Rupees in
Company Interested Transactions "000"
Director

1 Casual Sportswear Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed Sales 223,996

2 Artistic Apparels (Pvt) Ltd. Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Ahmed| Sales 150,962

3 DL1961 Premium Denim Inc. | Mrs. Maliha Faisal Sales 918,749
Reimbursement of

expenses 62,704

4 Artistic Fabric & Garment Mr. Muhammad Igbal Ahmed | Sales 110,249

Industries (Pvt) Ltd. Purchases 3,694

Services rendered 36,365

5 Premium Distributors Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed Sales 62,440

6 Warp Weft LLC. Ms. Sarah Faisal Ahmed Sales 82,873
Reimbursement of

expenses 12,118

Maijority of Directors of the Company were interested in these transactions due to common directorship in the
associated companies, the required quorum of directors seemingly could not be formed for approval of these
transactions which have to be approved by the shareholders in the General Meeting. Therefore, the transactions
carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2018 are being placed before the shareholders for their
consideration and approval / ratification.

All related party transactions, during the year 2018, were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and
the Board in their respective meetings. The transactions with related parties were carried out at arm's length
prices determined in accordance with the comparable uncontrolled prices method.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The concerned Directors abstained while the Board approved the above transactions in accordance with the

requirements of relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017.

The above transactions with related parties are an ongoing process and will also remain continued in future.
None of the Directors other than the concerned Directors have any direct or indirect interest in the above

mentioned associated companies and have no interest in the above business, other than shareholders of the
Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE
BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN ACHIEVING
THE COMPANY'S OBJECTIVES

Pursuant to the provisions of the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017,
an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Artistic Denim Mills Limited (the "Company")
was carried out. The purpose of evaluation was to examine those key areas where the Board requires
clarity in order to provide high level oversight, including: the strategic process; key business drivers and
performance milestones; the global economic environment and competitive context in which the Company
operates; the risks faced by the business; Board dynamics; capability and alignment; reputation; and
information flows.

| report that the overall performance of the Board has remained satisfactory on the basis of criteria set

for the purpose. Following are the integral components of evaluation criteria to judge the performance

of the Board and to achieve the Company's objectives:

o Compliance with the legislative system in which Company operates, including Companies Act, 2017
(previously Companies Ordinance, 1984), Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited,
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

° Active participation in strategic planning process, enterprise risk management system, policy
development, financial structure, monitoring and approval.

o Hiring, evaluating, compensating and supporting the Executive Directors and other key positions
including Chief Executive.

e Appropriate constitution of Board Committees with members possessing adequate technical knowhow
and experience.

o Establishing adequate system of internal controls in the Company and its regular assessment through
self-assessment mechanism or/and internal audit activities.

o Ensuring presence of required quorum in Board and Committees' meeting.

o Ensuring orientation and training of Board of Directors to enable them to perform their duties in
an effective manner.

MUHAMMAD IQBAL AHMED

R .

Chairman
Karachi: September 29, 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018.

OPERATING FINANCIAL RESULTS

Financial Results of the Company for the year under review are summarized as follows:
Rs. in (“000’)

Profit for the year before taxation 600,077
Taxation (83,546)
Net Profit for the year 516,531

Un-appropriated profit brought forward 4,918,905
Other comprehensive income 1,109
Profit available for appropriation 5,436,545
Appropriations:

Final Dividend for year ended June 30, 2017

Cash (176,400)
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 5,260,145

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The net sales of the Company for the year under review amounted to Rs. 8,240 (June 30, 2017: Rs. 6,907)
million, grew by 19.31% despite slow demand of textile products in international market. Growth in sales
was achieved in both denim fabric and garment segment.

For the year under review, gross profit increased from Rs. 740 million to Rs. 792 million in absolute terms
and as a percentage of net sales decreased from 10.71 percent to 9.61 percent. The decrease in gross
margin as a percentage of net sales was due to increase in cost of doing business, escalating labor costs
and increase in prices of other inputs.

Other operating income increased from Rs. 100 million to Rs. 268 million, an increase of Rs. 168 million
from the previous year was due to realized and unrealized exchange gain on exports.

Finance cost slightly increased from Rs. 88 million to Rs. 92 million due to increase in working capital
requirements.

Net profit for the year stood at Rs. 517 million, grew by 20.28% vis-a-vis the previous year. The Company's
net margin for the year stood at 6.27%. Earnings per Share (EPS) stood at Rs. 6.15 as against Rs. 5.11
of last year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company are pleased to recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 2.50/= per share
for the financial year ended June 30, 2018 (June 30, 2017: Rs. 2.10/= per share), subject to shareholders'
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The total amount of dividend to be paid to the
shareholders will be Rs. 210 million.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Company has an effective Cash Flow Management in place to project inflows and outflows of cash
and develop strategies to meet working capital requirements through cash inflows and short term
borrowings. In year 2018 the Company generated Rs. 567.591 (2017: Rs. 154.646) million from operating
activities. The inflow from operating activities was largely a result of higher cash earnings. Cash generated
from operating activities was used on capital expenditure and payment of dividend.

Y 10 A
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SALES AND MARKETING

With a track record of over 27 years of experience, ADM prides itself at providing its customers the best
possible denim brands. ADM continued to participate in exhibitions in Europe and US to achieve better
customer connections with denim brands.

As part of sustainable development initiatives, the Company is working on new developments to maximize
value creation. New products are being produced using Organic Cotton and BCI Cotton to stay competitive
in the marketplace.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pakistan's textile exports have shown 8.67 percent growth during last fiscal year mainly due to sharp rupee
depreciation, improvement in energy supply, partially releasing of refunds and cash subsidies under the
Export Package.

However, outlook for the Pakistan textile industry will continue to remain challenging due to various
reasons such as ever increasing cost of doing business, decline in cotton production, unstable international
selling prices and inappropriate policy environment. In addition to economic issues, Pakistan's textile
industry is also facing strong competition from the regional competitors as well as from the global
competitors.

Despite an ever challenging economic and business environment, the Company has been investing in
value addition which is an ongoing process to increase productivity and efficiency and it is expected to
be a key part of our growth strategy. Overall we are committed to maintain a positive momentum and
to achieve profitable growth and operational excellence.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors confirm the compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Code of Corporate Governance for the following matters:

e The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly, its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

o Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and any changes in accounting policies have been disclosed in the financial
statements. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

o International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed
in preparation of the financial statements and any departure there-from has been adequately
disclosed and explained.

o The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented,
regularly reviewed and monitored.

o There is no doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as
detailed in the Regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

o Key operating and financial data for the last six years in summarized form is annexed to the
Audited Financial Statements.

e The outstanding duties, statutory charges and taxes, if any, have been duly disclosed in the
Audited Financial Statements.

o Four directors of the Company have already attended the directors training course, whereas
one director is exempt from such course on account of the experience and qualification and
rest of the Directors will be trained within the time specified in the Code of Corporate
Governance.

________________________________________________\al
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e The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2018 along with disclosure as required under the
Code of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Audited Financial Statements.

o During the year July 01, 2017 to June 30, 2018 the trading in Company's shares by its Directors,
CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit, Other Executives and their spouses
& minor children is annexed to the Audited Financial Statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

a. Madle: 6
b.  Female:

—_

The composition of board is as follows:

Category Names
a) Independent Director i. Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan
b) Other Non-executive Directors i.  Mrs. Maliha Faisal

ii. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Ahmed
iii. Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Ahmed
iv. Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed

v. _Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim
c) Executive Director i.  Mr. Muhammad Faisal Ahmed

The Directors of the Company were elected in Extraordinary General meeting of the Company held on
November 22, 2017. The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable contributions made by
the outgoing Director and welcome the new Director.

During the year under review, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held in Pakistan and the
attendance by each Director was as follows:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Faisal Ahmed

Mrs. Maliha Faisal

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Ahmed *
Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Ahmed
Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim
Ms. Sarah Faisal Ahmed **

Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan

QD N[ |—=[— |

Leave of absence was granted to directors who were unable to attend the Board Meetings.
* Elected on Board in the election of Directors held on November 22, 2017.
** Retired on November 23, 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has formed the Audit Committee in line with the requirements of the Code of
Corporate Governance. The Audit Committee consists of three members, two non-executives and one
independent. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an independent director. The Audit Committee has
performed its functions satisfactorily and in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance.
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During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance record of each director
was as follows:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim
Mrs. Maliha Faisal *

Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan
Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed *

[ O

Leave of absence was granted to director who was unable to attend the Board Meetings.
*Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed replaced Mrs. Maliha Faisal w.e.f. December 06, 2017.

The Board of Directors has formed the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) in line
with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. The Committee consists of three members,
two non-executives and one independent. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director.
The Committee is involved in making recommendations to the Board regarding Human Resource Policies
and in the appointment, remuneration and succession of CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Chief Internal
Auditor and other senior positions reporting directly to the CEO. During the year, one meeting of the
Committee was held. The attendance record of each director was as follows:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim 1
Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed 1

Ms. Sarah Faisal Ahmed * -
Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan * -

Leave of absence was granted to director who was unable to attend the Board Meeting.
*Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan replaced Ms. Sarah Faisal Ahmed w.e.f. December 06, 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of a Non-Executive Directors / Independent Director for attending the meetings of the
Board/Committee shall, from time to time be determined by the Board. The Non-Executive Directors /
Independent Director were paid remuneration by way of fee for each meeting of the Board and Committee
of Directors attended by them. The Directors shall additionally be paid such travelling, boarding, lodging
and other expenses properly incurred by them in or about the performance of their duties or business if
any of them has to come to attend the Board or general meeting of the Company from outstation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSFER PRICING

All related party transactions, during the financial year 2018, were placed before the Audit Committee
and the Board for their review and approval. These transactions were duly approved by the Audit Committee
and the Board in their respective meetings. The transactions with related parties were carried out at arm's
length prices determined in accordance with the comparable uncontrolled prices method.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a robust Risk Management framework which enables it to manage, monitor and report
on the principal risk and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. Under
the framework, the Company has incorporated processes and systems to proactively monitor, manage
and mitigate these risks along with appropriate review mechanisms.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

ADM has a comprehensive Internal Financial Control System commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The system encompasses the major processes to ensure safeguarding of the
Company's assets, proper authorization of financial transactions, compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations and efficient use of resources. The management of the Company duly considers and takes
appropriate action on the recommendations made by the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors.

AUDITORS

The present Auditors, EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants are retiring at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting scheduled to be held on October 27, 2018 and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board of
Directors endorses the recommendation of the Audit Committee for their re-appointment as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2019, at a mutually agreed fee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBLITY
1.  Energy Conservation

The Company has its own power generation plant. Power plant caters to the energy requirements
of all its sites to keep running with low cost power at all the divisions like Spinning, Weaving and
Garment. The operation and maintenance of the plant is carried out by highly qualified and well
trained staff.

In line with the Company's declared commitment towards conservation of natural resources, all
business units have continued with their efforts to improve energy usage efficiencies. During the
year, the Company has installed Solar Power System to hedge against the rising cost of gas and
fuel. The Company is engaged in the continuous process of energy conservation through process
& machinery modifications, implementation of technological advancements, development of newer
methods, maintenance, waste heat recovery etc. These steps lead to savings in terms of energy,
cost of production and time.

2.  Environment, Health & Safety

The ADM has documented system of health, safety and environment to ensure that entire ADM
premises and atmosphere is safe and healthy for all its employees, customers, stakeholders,
contractors, visitors and suppliers. The Company has made objective-based efforts for reducing
unsafe and unhealthy work practice / conditions. The Company has taken adequate measures to
prevent accidents and injury to health arising out of, associated with or occurring in the course of
work. Management Representatives are responsible for health and safety of all personnel and
accountable for the implementation of health and safety elements of high standard. Environmental
Noise testing activity is also being carried out by outside commercial laboratory on a periodic basis.
Fire alarm and detection systems are installed and maintained in proper working order.

The ADM ensures full commitment to environment, health & safety at all levels of management and
conduct regular assessments and reviews to ensure the continuance of further improvement of these
conditions and to confirm the effectiveness of the Company's policy, objectives, targets and programs
in this regard.

ADM owns the following certifications:

e SO 14001:2004 EMS (Environmental Management System)

e 1SO 9001:2008 QMS (Quality Management System)

e BSCI (Business Social Compliance Initiative)

e WRAP (Worldwide Responsible Accreditation Production)
e SEDEX (Supplier Ethical Data Exchange)

Y 14 A
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e GOTS (Global Organic Textile Standard)

e OCS (Organic Content Standard)

e RCS (Recycled Claim Standard)

e GRS (Global Recycled Standard)

o C-TPAT (Customs-Trade Partnership against Terrorism)
e OEKO-TEX Standard 100

3.  Security Measures

The management of the Company is fully aware of the importance of safety and security for the
smooth running of the operations and incurred substantial cost for protection of employees and
assets by deploying security personnel, security policies and procedures, The Company has established
a system of surveillance through the installation of CCTV cameras at various locations.

4, Waste Water Treatment Plant
Water is a scarce natural resource for our country and it should be managed in the best possible
manner. The Company has waste water treatment facility meeting the National Environment Quality
Standards of EPA Pakistan. Since water is a scarce commodity, hence it is imperative to evolve
technologies which treat it efficiently so that it can be reused. At the waste water treatment plants
waste water is treated before being reused or discharged to main sewer lines in accordance with
environmental protection standards.

5. Equal Opportunity Employer
Going with the core beliefs of the Company that every human being is equal, ADM is committed
to creating a diverse environment and is proud to be hiring employees from various ethnicities
without any prejudice or bias.

6. Donation to Edhi Foundation

ADM is committed to act ethically towards the society at large and aims to contribute to the social
development in the country. Accordingly, the Company contributes large donation to Edhi Foundation.

7.  Haijj tours

As part of the Company's commitment to provide incentives and encouragement for the employees,
ADM sponsors Hajj of two employees through balloting each year.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

3

FAISAL AHMED
Chief Executive

<J//

MUHAMMAD IQBAL-UR-RAHIM
Karachi: September 29, 2018 Director
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(Rupees in “000)

ASSETS EMPLOYED
Operating fixed assets 5,194,049 5,206,444 4,329,562 4,170,718 3,655,456 3,305,415
Capital work-in-progress 110,657 251,270 1,010,673 524,266 698,979 209,681
Intangible assets 6,468 8,119 - - -
Long term loans 5,374 2,673 7,864 7,266 8,471 5,314
Long term deposits 1,566 1,686 1,698 956 956 853
Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,619,245 1,102,220 864,902 996,063 564,693 754,011
Total Assets Employed 6,937,359 6,572,412 6,214,699 5,699,269 4,928,555 4,275,274
FINANCED BY
Shareholders equity 6,100,145 5,758,905 5,497,468 5,456,653 4,802,782 4,042,451
Long term financing 813,274 813,507 577,560 130,452 39,985 168,489
Deferred liability 23,940 - 139,671 112,164 85,788 64,334
6,937,359 6,572,412 6,214,699 5,699,269 4,928,555 4,275,274
SALES & PROFITS
Net sales / Turnover 8,239,986 6,906,526 6,461,983 6,998,644 6,467,591 6,136,793
Gross profit 791,820 739,663 703,437 1,178,342 1,149,130 1,145,604
Profit before taxation 600,077 446,153 399,842 761,917 860,978 787,677
Net profit after taxation 516,531 429,437 377,999 743,546 852,497 758,031
Proposed Bonus/Dividend % 25 21 20 40 10 10
Un-appropriated profit 5,260,145 4,918,905 4,657,468 4,616,653 3,962,782 3,202,451
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Number Shareholdings Total Number
Sharegfolders From To Sh(:lreosf Held

206 1 100 5,444

133 101 500 51,220

65 501 1,000 55,580

143 1,001 5,000 395,949

30 5,001 10,000 235,100

9 10,001 15,000 115,800

4 15,001 20,000 74,600

3 20,001 25,000 67,900

2 25,001 30,000 55,300

1 30,001 35,000 35,000

1 35,001 40,000 38,500

2 40,001 45,000 81,100

1 45,001 50,000 46,904

1 80,001 85,000 82,000

1 95,001 100,000 99,000

1 140,001 145,000 145,000

1 160,001 165,000 165,000

1 170,001 175,000 174,250

1 285,001 290,000 290,000

1 595,001 600,000 600,000

1 1,410,001 1,415,000 1,410,200

1 1,765,001 1,770,000 1,767,000

1 9,740,001 9,745,000 9,741,400

1 18,145,001 18,150,000 18,146,000

1 50,120,001 50,125,000 50,121,753

612 84,000,000

Y 2/ A
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Categories of Shareholders Shares Held | Percentage

INSURANCE COMPANIES

STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 1,767,000
Sub - Total: 1,767,000 2.10

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXCUTIVE OFFICER, AND THEIR
SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN

MUHAMMAD ALl AHMED 858
MALIHA FAISAL 500
MUHAMMAD FAISAL AHMED 50,121,753
ZAFAR-UL-MUKHTAR AHMED KHAN 500
MUHAMMAD IQBAL-UR-RAHIM 600
MUHAMMAD YOUSUF AHMED 99,000
MUHAMMAD IQBAL AHMED 18,146,000
Sub - Total: 68,369,211 81.39

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING AND RELATED

PARTIES
ARTISTIC PROPERTIES (PVT) LIMITED 1,410,200
Sub - Total: 1,410,200 1.68
NIT AND ICP
INVESTMENT CORP. OF PAKISTAN 500
Sub - Total: 500 0.00
FOREIGN INVESTORS
HABIB BANK AG ZURICH, DEIRA DUBAI 15,000
Sub - Total: 15,000 0.02
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Categories of Shareholders Shares Held | Percentage
OTHERS

MOHAMMAD MUNIR MOHAMMAD AHMED KHANANI SE 184,250

ZILLION CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 165,000

SEVEN STAR SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 46,904

ASDA SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 32,500

DAWOOD FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED 23,500

DAWOOD FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED 20,500

HH MISBAH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 5,000

FIKREES (SMC-PVT) LIMITED 2,300

MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 1,500

SUNRAYS TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 1,500

FAWAD YOUSUF SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 1,000

HSZ SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 43001 80

Y.S. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 80

MAPLE LEAFCAPITAL LIMITED 1
Sub - Total: 484,115 0.58

INDIVIDUAL

LOCAL - INDIVIDUALS 11,953,974
Sub - Total: 11,953,974 14.23
Grand Total: 84,000,000 100.00

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE

Name of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Muhammad Faisal Ahmed 50,121,753
Muhammad Igbal Ahmed 18,146,000
Sadia Zain 9,741,400
Total: 78,009,153 92.87%
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2018 2017
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Gross profit - % of net sales 9.61 10.71
Profit before taxation - % of net sales 7.28 6.46
Net Profit after taxation - % of net sales 6.27 6.22
Earnings per share - basic & diluted 6.15 5.11
Increase / (decrease) in net sales - % 19.31 6.88
Raw and packing materials - % of net sales 46.97 47.85
Labour - % of net sales 24.19 21.88
Other cost of goods manufactured - % of net sales 19.71 19.71
Distribution costs - % of net sales 2.41 2.47
Administrative expenses - % of net sales 1.55 1.51
Finance costs - % of net sales 1.12 1.28
Taxation - % of net sales 1.01 0.24
Inventory turnover days 75 80
Receivable turnover days 73 67
SHORT TERM SOLVENCY
Current ratio 1.51 1.38
Acid test ratio 0.90 0.85
OVERALL VALUATION AND ASSESSMENT
Return on equity (average) % 8.71 7.63
PE. ratio 12.16 15.01
Book value per share 72.62 68.56
Long term debts : equity 12.88 12:88

DETAIL OF TRADING BY THE DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, COMPANY SECRETARY, THEIR SPOUSES
AND MINOR CHILDREN

No. of Shares

Name of Director OBpenmg Purchase Sale Closing
alance
Mr. Muhammad Faisal Ahmed 50,084,753 37,000 - 50,121,753

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Ahmed 18,147,000 - 1,000 18,146,000
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

Artistic Denim Mills Limited
Year Ended June 30, 2018

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) in the following manner:

1. The total number of Directors are seven (7) as per the following:
a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1
2.  The composition of board is as follows:
Category Name
a) Independent Director i. Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan
b) Other Non-executive Directors i.  Mrs. Maliha Faisal

ii. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Ahmed
iii. Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Ahmed
iv. Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed

v. Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim
c) Executive Director i. Mr. Muhammad Faisal Ahmed

3.  The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more
than five listed Companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries
of listed holding companies where applicable).

4.  The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.

6.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 ( "the Act") and these Regulations.

7.  The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman / Chairperson and,
in his / her absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board
has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.
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8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9.  Half of the directors on the board have acquired the prescribed certification as
mentioned under Regulation number 20, whereas one director is exempted from
such course on account of the experience and qualification. Following Directors have
already gone through Directors' Training program:

Mr. Muhammad Faisal Ahmed
Mrs. Maliha Faisal

Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim
Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee:

Name of Director Designation
Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed Member

Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:

Name of Director Designation
Mr. Zafar-ul-Mukhtar Ahmed Khan Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahmed Member

Mr. Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the committee were
as per following:

a) Audit Committee Quarterly meetings
b) HR and Remuneration Committee Annual meeting

c¢) Nomination Committee N/A

d) Risk Management Committee N/A

15. The Board has set-up an effective Internal Audit Function managed by suitably
qualified and experienced personnel who are involved in the internal audit function
on a full time basis and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Company.
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16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given
a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board
of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor
children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
the Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

On behalf of the Board

o

MUHAMMAD FAISAL AHMED
Chief Executive

%//

MUHAMMAD IQBAL-UR-RAHIM
Director
Karachi: September 29, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Artistic Denim Mills Limited (the Company)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Artistic Denim Mills Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and
to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by
the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section
208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and
determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our atftention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects,

with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
30 June 2018.

1 G Blostr

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 29 September 2018

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of Artistic Denim Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Artistic Denim Mills Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the statement of profit
or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30
June 2018 and of the profit, comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the Key audit matters

1. Existence and Valuation of stock in trade

As disclosed in note 12 to the accom-panying
financial statements, the stock in trade balance
constitutes 17% of total assets of the Company.
The cost of Work in Process (WIP) and finished
goods is defermined at average manufacturing
cost including a proportion of production
overheads.

We focused on stock in trade as it is a
significant portion of company's total assets
and it requires management judgment in
determining an appropriate costing basis and
assessing its valuation.

We performed a range of audit procedures with
respect to inventory items including, amongst
others physical observation of inventory counts,
testing valuation methods and their
appropriateness in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards. We also tested the
calculations of per unit cost of finished goods
and WIP and assessed the appropriateness of
management's basis for the allocation of cost
and production overheads.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in respect of the accounting policies and
the details of inventory balances held by the
Company at the year end.

2. Revenue from related party transactions and disclosures

The Company generates revenue, from sales
to related parties, of Rs.1,549.27 million which
comprises of 19% of the total revenue as
disclosed in note 39 to the accompanying
financial statements.

Due to the significance of related party
transactions to the overall operations of the
Company and the accuracy, completeness of
disclosures of such transactions and year end
balances, we have considered the same to be
a key audit matter.

Our procedures, in relation to the accuracy,
existence and completeness of disclosure of
related parties and its transactions amongst
others, includes following:

- Evaluation of the appropriateness of
management's process for identifying and
recording related party transactions;
- Reviewed minutes of the meetings of audit
committee and those charged with governance
for recommendation and approval of transactions
with related parties respectively;

- Inspection of invoices, on a sample basis, and
obtained direct confirmation from related parties;
- Obtained written representation from
management concerning completeness of
information provided regarding the identfification
of related parties; and

- We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of the disclosures made in respect of the related
parties balances and transactions in accordance
with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the Key audit matters

3. Capital Expenditures

As disclosed in note 7.1 to the accom-panying | Our key audit procedures in this area included,
financial statements, the Company has incurred | amongst others, obtaining an understanding of
significant amount of capital expenditure during | the Company's process with respect to capital
the year. expenditure and testing controls relevant to such
process.

We focused on capital expenditure incurred
during the year as this represents a significant | We performed substantive audit procedures
transaction for the year and involves certain | through inspection of related documents
judgmental areas, such as capitalization of | supporting various components of the capitalized
elements of eligible components of cost as | costs.

per the applicable financial reporting standards,
therefore, we have identified this as a key audit | We also considered whether the items of cost
matter. capitalized meet the recognition criteria of an
asset in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting standards.

We reviewed management's estimates about the
useful life of assets so capitalized and consequent
depreciation rates used by the Company.

We further assessed the adequacy of financial
statements disclosures in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

4. New Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and its impact on the financial statements

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) became | We assessed the procedures applied by the
applicable for the first time for the preparation | management for identification of the changes
of the Company's annual financial statements | required in the financial statements due the
for the year ended 30 June 2018. | application of the Act. We considered the
adequacy and appropriateness of the additional
The Act forms an integral part of the statutory | disclosures and changes to the previous
financial reporting framework as applicable | disclosures based on the new requirements. We
to the Company and amongst others, | also evaluated the sources of information used
prescribes the nature and content of disclosures | by the management for the preparation of the
in relation fo various elements of the financial | above referred disclosures and the internal
statements. consistency of such disclosures with other elements
of the financial statements.

In case of the Company, a summary of key
additional disclosures and changes to the
existing disclosures have been stated in note
3.1 to the accompanying financial statements.

The aforementioned changes and
enhancements in the financial statements are
considered important and a key audit matter
because of the volume and significance of the
changes in the financial statements resulting
from the transition to the new reporting
requirements under the Act.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company's business; and

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section
7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Tarig Feroz
Khan.

1 ford Blortr

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 29 September 2018

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
ASSETS Note ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 5,304,706 5,457,714
Intangible assets 8 6,468 8,119
Long term loans 9 5,374 2,673
Long term deposits 10 1,566 1,686
5,318,114 5,470,192
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 11 215,128 168,082
Stock-in-trade 12 1,717,868 1,361,115
Trade debts 13 1,807,006 1,495,554
Loans and advances 14 51,970 57,308
Trade deposits 15 7,699 4,604
Other receivables 16 407,618 285,766
Sales tax refundable 112,074 199,881
Taxation - net 375,168 364,763
Cash and bank balances 17 86,896 63,232
4,781,427 4,000,305
10,099,541 9,470,497
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
100,000,000 (2017: 100,000,000)
ordinary share of Rs 10/- each 18 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up 18 840,000 840,000
Reserves 19 5,260,145 4,918,905
6,100,145 5,758,905
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 20 813,274 813,507
Deferred liability 21 23,940 -
837,214 813,507
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 22 1,487,539 1,172,294
Unclaimed dividend 2,100 2,171
Accrued mark-up 23 16,927 15,228
Short term borrowings 24 1,570,000 1,670,000
Current maturity of long-term financing 20 85,616 38,392
3,162,182 2,898,085
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 25
10,099,541 9,470,497

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
%ea <é‘///\/ o

Faisal Ahmed Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Sagheer Ahmed
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended June 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

Note  ......... Rupees in 000 .........
TURNOVER 26 8,239,986 6,906,526
Cost of sales 27 (7,448,166) (6,166,863)
GROSS PROFIT 791,820 739,663
Distribution costs 28 (198,557) (170,295)
Administrative expenses 29 (127,802) (104,323)
Other operating expenses 30 (40,475) (30,463)
Other income 31 267,579 99,774
(99,255) (205,307)
OPERATING PROFIT 692,565 534,356
Finance costs 32 (92,488) (88,203)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 600,077 446,153
Taxation 33 (83,546) (16,716)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 516,531 429,437

(Rs. Per share)
EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted 34 6.15 5.11

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Qﬁw& <J// .

Faisal Ahmed Muhammad Iqbal-ur-Rahim Sagheer Ahmed
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended June 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
Net profit for the year 516,531 429,437
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss account
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan 21 1,109 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 517,640 429,437

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

@’Mg <J// .

Faisal Ahmed Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Sagheer Ahmed
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended June 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 35 752,936 457,150
Taxes paid (93,951) (69,21¢)
Gratuity paid (725) (145,499)
Finance costs paid (90,789) (87,801)
Long-term deposits 120 12
Net cash generated from operating activities 567,591 154,646
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (314,961) (564,971)
Long-term loans (3,654) 13,357
Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4,168 2,668
Net cash used in investing activities (314,447) (548,946)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing repaid (38,392) -
Long-term financing acquired 85,383 274,339
Short-term borrowings (repaid) / acquired - net (100,000) 290,000
Dividend paid (176,471) (167,590)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (229,480) 396,749
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23,664 2,449
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 63,232 60,783
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF THE YEAR 17 86,896 63,232

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Faisal Ahmed Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Sagheer Ahmed
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Revenue Reserves

Acturial
Issued )
il Unappro- gain/(loss
sué)scr!ged prigred onde inet} Total Total
an p uliac;;ul.up Profit benefit plan equity
................................ Rupees in 000 .......ccoevrerernsnsnsnesesnes
Balance as at July 01, 2016 840,000 4,691,402 (33,934) 4,657,468 5,497,468
Net profit for the year - 429,437 - 429,437 | | 429,437
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 429 437 - 429,437 429,437
Cash dividend paid @ Rs. 2 per Ordinary share
of Rs.10 each for the year ended June 30, 2016 - (168,000) - (168,000)  (168,000)
Balance as at June 30, 2017 840,000 4,952,839 (33,934) 4,918,905 5,758,905
Net profit for the year - 516,531 - 516,531 516,531
Other comprehensive income - - 1,109 1,109 1,109
Total comprehensive income for the year - 516,531 1,109 517,640 517,640
Cash dividend paid @ Rs.2.10 per Ordinary share
of Rs.10 each for the year ended June 30, 2017 - (176,400) - (176,400) (176,400)
Balance as at June 30, 2018 840,000 5,292,970 (32,825) 5,260,145 6,100,145

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

@M«; é/ v

Faisal Ahmed Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Sagheer Ahmed
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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2018 ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED‘

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Aristic Denim Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on May 18, 1992 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is currently listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
principal activity of the Company is to manufacture and sell rope dyed denim fabric, yarn and value
added textile products.

The registered office and factory premises of the Company is situated at Plot No. 5 - 9, 23 - 26, Sector
16, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.

2 SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS THAT AFFECTED THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL
POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

Following is the summary of significant transactions and events that have affected the financial position
and performance of the Company:

- Capital expenditure made during the year in respect of garment division - note 7.1
- Declared and paid dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan for financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and, provisions of
and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ
from the IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements. These changes, amongst others, included change in respect of nomenclature of
these financial statements. Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the fourth schedule of the
Act have been revised, resulting in elimination of duplicative disclosure with the IFRS disclosure requirements
and incorporation of additional amended disclosures including, but not limited to, significant transactions
and events (refer note 2), particulars of immovable assets of the Company (refer note 7.1.1), outstanding
debts in respect of export sales (refer note 13.1) management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision
in the financial statements (refer note 33.2), change in threshold for identification of executives (refer
note 37), associated companies incorporated outside Pakistan (refer note 39.2) etc.

3.2 Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
specifically stated.

4 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
of the previous financial year except as described below:
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New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Company has adopted the following accounting standards and the amendments and interpretations
of IFRS’s which became effective for the current year:

IAS7  Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)
IAS 12 Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect on the
financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are
not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date
(annual periods
Standard or interpretation beginning
on or after)

IFRS2  Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payments Transactions  01-Jan-18
- (Amendments)

IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ~ 01-Jan-18

- (Amendments)
IFRS9  Financial Instruments 01-Jul-18
IFRS9  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - (Amendments) 01-Jan-19
IFRS 15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01-Jul-18
IFRS 16  Leases 01-Jan-19
IAS19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 01-Jan-19
IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — (Amendments) 01-Jan-19
IAS 40 Investment Property - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01-Jan-18
IFRIC 22  Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 01-Jan-18
IFRIC 23  Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01-Jan-19

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company’s
financial statements in the period of initial application except for IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the said standard.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB in December 2016 and December 2017. Such improvements are
generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019
respectively. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material
impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

Y 11 A
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The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual
Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework.
The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any
standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB
in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable
standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date
(annual periods

Standard beginning on or after)
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01-Jan-16
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01-Jan-21

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. The management continually evaluates
estimates and judgments which are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under current circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the management has made the following estimates
and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

- determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 6.1);
- impairment of inventories / adjustment of inventories to their Net realisable Value (Note 6.3);
- recognition of staff retirement benefits (Note 6.13);

- provisions (Note 6.12);

- recognition of taxation and deferred taxation (Note 6.14);

- impairment of assets (Note 6.3); and

- contingencies and commitments (Note 25).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation on all operating fixed assets except leasehold land, is charged to profit or loss account,
applying the reducing balance method whereby the cost of an asset, less their residual value, is written
off over its estimated useful life. Leasehold land is amortised using the straight line method over its lease

term. The rates used are stated in note 7.1 to the financial statements.

In respect of additions and deletions of assets during the year, depreciation is charged from the month
of acquisition, when the asset is available for use and up to the month preceding the deletion, respectively.

a




ANNUAL REPORT

.ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED 2018

The carrying values of operating fixed assets are reviewed at each reporting date for indication that an
asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If any such indication exists and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash generating units are
written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
is the greater of net selling price and value in use.

Normal repair and maintenance is charged to profit or loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits
will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment are taken to the profit or loss account.

6.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. It consists of expenditure incurred and
advances made in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of their construction, installation and
acquisition. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are available for use.

6.2 Intangible assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Amortization is charged to profit or loss account applying the straight line method whereby the cost of
the intangible less their residual value, is written off over its estimated useful life, at the rates disclosed
in note 8 to the financial statements.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are
written down to their recoverable amount.

6.3  Impairment - Non financial assets

The carrying value of non-financial assets other than inventories is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The fair value less costs to sell calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs to sell of the asset. In determining fair value less costs
to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other fair value indicators.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss account.

6.4  Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying

assets are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit
or loss account.
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6.5 Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at cost, determined on a first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis. Provision is made
for any slow moving and obsolete items.

ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon up to
reporting date.

6.6  Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw and packing materials is determined using FIFO basis except for those in transit which are
stated at invoice price plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

Finished goods and work-in-process consist of cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal capacity. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

6.7 Trade debts
Trade debts are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less provision for doubtful debts. When
the recovery of the amount is considered uncertain by the management, a provision is made for the
same. Bad debts are written-off when identified.

6.8  Loans, advances and other receivables
These are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. However, an assessment
is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment
loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amounts.

6.9  Cash and cash equivalents
These are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand net of outstanding balance of running
finance facilities availed by the Company, if any.

6.10 Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction cost) and the redemption value recognised in the profit or loss account over the period

of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss account when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through amortisation process.

6.11 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

- _______________________________________________________\WEyAA |
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6.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

6.13 Staff gratuity - Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity plan (defined benefit scheme) for all its permanent employees.
Provision is made annually, to cover obligations under the plan, by way of a charge to profit or loss
account, calculated in accordance with the actuarial valuation.

6.14 Taxation
Current

The Company falls under the final tax regime under Section 169 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
Provision for tax on other income is based on taxable income, other than covered under FTR, at the rates
applicable for the current tax year, after considering the rebates and tax credits available, if any.

Deferred

Since the income of the Company is subject to tax under Final Tax Regime, no deferred tax liability has
been accounted for in these financial statements as the Company’s tax liability will be assessed under
the said regime and, hence, no temporary differences are likely to arise.

6.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Specific revenue recognition criteria are as follows:

(i) Sales are recorded when significant risk and rewards are transferred to the customer;
(ii) Dividend income is recognised when the Company'’s right to receive payment is established; and
(iii) Other revenue is accounted for on accrual basis.

6.16 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rates approximating those
ruling on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing on the reporting sheet date. Gains and
losses on translation are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

6.17 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and also
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

6.18 Dividends and appropriation to general reserve

Dividends and appropriation to general reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period
in which these are approved.

sy ______________________________________________________________________|
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6.19 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company'’s functional and
presentation currency.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ........ Rupees in ‘000 .........
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 7.1 5,194,049 5,206,444
Capital work-in-progress 7.2 110,657 251,270
5,304,706 5,457,714
7.1  Operating fixed assets
WRITTEN
CoST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION  DOWN VALUE
Asat  Additions As ot As ot As at As ot
July 01, / . June 30, Period / July 01,  Forthe ) June 30,  June 30,
2017 Transfers* (Disposals) 2018 Rate % 2017 Yeor (Ondisposals) 2018 2018
............................. RUPEES iN “000.uuusuusssssssssssssssssssssses sessssssssssssssssssssssssss RUPEES I 000uuuuuusinnssssssssssssssnss
June 30, 2018
Leasehold land 1,211,663 - - 1,211,663 65t086yrs 188,713 15,188 - 203,901 1,007,762
Building on leasehold land 2,117,883  167,768* - 2,285,651 10 765,646 142,900 - 908,546 1,377,105
Plant and machinery 4,869,957 208,044 * - 5,078,001 10 2,286,508 269,333 - 2,555,841 2,522,160
Factory equipment 272,492 43,658* - 316,150 10 119,208 17,614 - 136,822 179,328
Furniture and fixtures 40,992 2,374 - 43,366 10 12,503 3,005 - 15,508 27,858
Office equipment, including
computers 35,838 4,002 - 39,840 33 27,743 3,051 - 30,794 9,046
Vehicles 122077 29728 (6602) 145,203 20 64137 14485 (4209) 74413 70,790
8,670,902 455,574  (6,602) 9,119,874 3,464,458 465,576 (4,209) 3,925,825 5,194,049
WRITTEN
CoST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
Asat  Addifions As ot As ot As at As ot
July 01, / ) June 30, Period/  July01, Forthe June 30,  June 30,
2016 Transfers (Pisposals) 2017 Rate % 2016 Year (Ondisposcls) 2017 2017
............................. RUPEES iN “000.u0usussssssssssssssssssssssnes sessssssssssssssssssssssssss RUPEES I 000uuusnissssssssssssssssnss
June 30, 2017
Leasehold land 1,211,663 . - 1,211,663 65t086yrs 173525 15,188 . 188,713 1,022,950
Building on leasehold land 1,329,549 788,334 - 2,117,883 10 639,061 126,585 - 765,646 1,352,237
Plant and machinery 4,411,439 458,518 - 4,869,957 10 2,019,894 266,614 - 2286508 2,583,449
Factory equipment 243,702 28,790 - 272,492 10 104,762 14,446 - 119,208 153,284
Furniture and fixtures 31,855 9,137 - 40,992 10 10,264 2,239 - 12,503 28,489
Office equipment, including
computers 32,585 3,253 - 35,838 33 24,77 2972 - 27,743 8,095
Vehicles 97,427 28,085 (3,435) 122,077 20 56,381 9,799 (2,043) 64,137 57,940
7,358,220 1,316,117  (3,435) 8,670,902 3,028,658 437,843 (2,043) 3,464,458 5,206,444

- ..___________________________________________________\WEA |



ANNUAL REPORT

.ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED 2018

7.1.1 Leasehold lands and buildings on leasehold lands of the Company are located at Karachi with
an area of 245,202 square yards.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
7.1.2 Depreciation / amortization charge for the year
has been allocated as follows:

Cost of Sales 27.1 429,732 404,129
Distribution cost 28 934 876
Administrative expenses 29 34,910 32,838

465,576 437,843

7.1.3 The following fixed assets was disposed off during the year:

Written Gain/(loss)
Accumulated Down Sale on Mode of
Description Cost  Depreciation Value  Proceeds disposal disposal Particulars of Buyer

....................... Rupees in ‘000 .......ccceeeeeeneenee

Vehicle 497 440 57 370 313 Negotiation Uzair, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 630 500 130 400 270 Negotiation Suzuki South, Karachi.
Vehicle 1,300 45 1,255 1,300 45 Negotiation Muhammad Babar, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 1,387 1,245 142 400 258 Negotiation Irshad Ahmed, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 8 - Negotiation Arshad Mehmood, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 46 32 14 14 - Negotiation Naveed, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 13 5 Negotiation Owais, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 13 5 Negotiation Manzoor, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 47 28 19 19 - Negotiation Imran Habib, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 46 32 14 15 1 Negotiation Rizwan Khan, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 15 7 Negotiation M. Khalid, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 47 29 18 15 3) Negotiation Shabbir Ahmed, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 47 28 19 12 Ul Negotiation Ali Asghar, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 9 1 Insurance Claim ~ Adamiee Insurance, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 8 - Negotiation Muhammad Zubair, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 50 35 15 13 2 Negotiation Naeem Javed, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 47 28 19 19 - Negotiation Muhammad Boota, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 72 8 64 72 8 Negotiation Nasir Abbas, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 36 8 8 - Negotiation Naveed, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 47 28 19 20 1 Negotiation Sohail Igbal, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 970 700 270 700 430 Negotiation Muhammad Kamran, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 44 37 7 9 2 Negotiation Farhan Abbasi, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 47 32 15 16 1 Negotiation Fayyaz, Employee, Karachi.
Vehicle 970 710 260 700 440 Negotiation Muhammad Nadeem, Employee, Karachi.
June 30, 2018 6,602 4,209 2,393 4,168 1,775
June 30,2017 3,436 2,043 1,393 2,669 1276

7.2 Capital work-in-progress
Plant & Factory
Civil works machinery Advances equipment Total

cerennnnnnneenness RUPEES in 70007 .ooooiiiiiiinnnnnnnns

As at July 01,2017 106,378 92,676 52,216 - 251,270
Additions during the year 44115 139,736 51,348 43,658 278,857
Transferred to operating fixed assets (167,768) (208,044) - (43,658) (419,470)
Transferred from advances 36,158 - (36,158) - -
June 30,2018 18,883 24,368 67,406 - 110,657
June 30, 2017 106,378 92,676 52,216 - 251,270
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7.2.1 Includes borrowing costs incurred in respect of plant and machinery capitalized during the year
amounting to Rs. 0.735 (2017: Rs. 1.173) million.

8. INTANGIBLES ASSETS

WRITTEN
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
As at As at As at As at As at
June 30,2018 July 01, o June 30, July 01, Charge for June 30, June 30, AMORTISATION
2017 Additions 2018 2017 the year 2018 2018 RATE
(Rupees in '000)
Computer software 8,257 8,257 138 1,651 1,789 6,468 20%
WRITTEN
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
As at As at As at As at As at
June 30, 2017 July 01, o June 30, July 01, Charge for June 30, June 30, AMORTISATION
2016 Additions 2017 2016 the year 007 2017 RATE
(Rupees in '000)
Computer software - 8,257 8,257 - 138 138 8,119 20%
June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

8.1 Amortisation charge for the year has been

allocated as follows:
Cost of sales
Administrative expenses
9. LONG TERM LOANS - secured
Considered good

Executives
Employees

Less: Current portion
Executives
Employees

27.1 1,519 127
29 132 1
1,651 138

9.2and 9.3 4,505 2,018
3,139 1,972

9.1 7,644 3,990
14 (1,184) (387)
14 (1,086) (930)
(2,270) (1,317)

5,374 2,673

9.1 Represents loans extended to executives and employees which are in the nature of personal
loans. These are granted with the terms of their employment and are secured against their
gratuity balances. These loans are recoverable in monthly installments over a period, ranging
between 1 to 5 (2017: 1 to 5) years, and are interest free. These loans have not been
discounted to their present value as the financial impact therof is not considered material.

9.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the
period was Rs.4.851 (2017: Rs. 5.506) million.

____________________________________________________\Kj
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ... Rupees in ‘000 .........

9.3 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives

Opening balances 2,018 10,540
Transfer of employees from executives - (7,937)
Disbursements during the year 3,000 4,570
5,018 7173
Recovered during the year (513) (5,155)
4,505 2,018

10. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits
Utilities 1,279 1,279
Others 287 407
1,566 1,686
11. STORES AND SPARES
Stores
In hand 98,546 71,840
Spares
In hand 110,080 95,711
In transit 6,502 531
116,582 96,242
215,128 168,082
12. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials
In hand 27.1.1 794,921 488,756
In transit 96,529 65,848
891,450 554,604
Work-in-process 630,600 650,583
Finished goods 195,818 155,928
1,717,868 1,361,115
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13.1
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TRADE DEBTS - considered good
Secured - against letters of credit

Related parties:

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

......... Rupees in 000 .........

Artistic Fabric & Garment Industries (Pvi). Limited - 3,537
Artistic Apparels (Private) Limited - 5,664
- 9,201
Others 1,054,249 930,198
1,054,249 939,399
Unsecured
Related parties:
DL1961 Premium Denim Inc. 178,793 109,055
Casual Sports Wear 92,625 107,867
Warp Weft LLC - 25,977
Artistic Fabric & Garment Industries (Pvt). Limited 23,184 3,656
Premium Distributors 856 1,314
295,458 247,869
Others 457,299 308,286
1,807,006 1,495,554
Particulars of export sales in respect of outstanding debts :
Foreign Jurisdiction Confirmed Documentary Total
Letters Collection
of Credit
........... Rupees in ‘000 ..............
Asia 738,349 94,581 832,930
Europe 211,740 305,949 517,689
United States of America 3,111 274,123 277,234
2018 953,200 674,653 1,627,853
Asia 566,329 200,443 766,772
Europe 315,726 154,301 470,027
United States of America 3,677 150,672 154,349
2017 885,732 505,416 1,391,148
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

......... Rupees in 000 .........
13.2 Trade debt - Aging

Related parties

Neither past due nor impaired 272,274 253,383
Past due but not impaired within 120 days 23,184 3,687
295,458 257,070
Others

Neither past due nor impaired 1,407,607 1,128,583
Past due but not impaired within 120 days 103,941 109,901
1,511,548 1,238,484

1,807,006 1,495,554

13.3 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during
the year was Rs. 525.451 million (2017: Rs. 336.993 million).

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ......... Rupees in 000 .........
14. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good
Loans
Current portion of long term loans
Executives 9 1,184 387
Employees 9 1,086 930
2,270 1,317
Advances - unsecured
Suppliers 47,389 54,464
Contractors 2,071 1,080
Others 240 447
49,700 55,991
51,970 57,308
15. TRADE DEPOSITS
Container deposits 5,199 4,324
Others 2,500 280
7,699 4,604
16. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Duty draw back on export sales 403,947 283,552
Others 3,671 2,214
407,618 285,766

Y 5/ A
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17.

18.
18.1

18.2

19.

ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED‘

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Cash in banks
Current accounts

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised capital
2018 2017
Number of shares
Authorised Share Capital
100,000,000 100,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2018 2017
Fully paid ordinary shares of
Number of shares Rs. 10/- each
14,000,000 14,000,000 - Issued for cash
70,000,000 70,000,000 - Issued as fully paid bonus shares
84,000,000 84,000,000
RESERVES

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profit
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

1,731 14
85,165 63,218
86,896 63,232

1,000,000 1,000,000
140,000 140,000
700,000 700,000
840,000 840,000

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

5,259,036 4,918,905
1,109 -
5,260,145 4,918,905
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ........ Rupees in ‘000 .........
20. LONG TERM FINANCING - secured
Term finances from banks under the
State Bank of Pakistan’s (SBP’s) scheme for
Export Oriented Projects (EOP) and
Long-Term Financing Facility (LTFF)
Commercial bank - 1 20.1 339,526 291,740
Commercial bank - Il 20.2 559,364 560,159
898,890 851,899
Current maturities shown under
current liabilities (85,616) (38,392)
813,274 813,507

20.1 Represents loans obtained from commercial bank - I, from time to time, against the import of eligible plant
and machinery under the SBP's LTFF Scheme, as announced by the SBP in their MFD, Circular No. 07, dated
December 31, 2007.

The loans are repayable in 32 equal quarterly installments, commencing and ranging from June 30, 2018
to May 16, 2028, with the grace period of 2 years carrying mark-up at the SBP Refinance rate for 5 to 10
years (i.e. 2%) plus 0.70 % ) per annum, which are payable quarterly on the principal sum of loan and other
dues, if any, outstanding from time fo time.

The said loans are secured against the hypothecation of specific plant and machinery, aggregating to Rs.
378.91 million.

20.2 Represents loans obtained from commercial bank - I, from time to time, against the import of eligible plant
and machinery, by the Company under the SBP's LTFF Scheme, as announced by the SBP in their MFD,
Circular No. 07, dated December 31, 2007.

The loans are repayable in 32 equal quarterly installments, commencing and ranging from August 08, 2017
to June 26, 2028, with the grace period of 2 years carrying mark-up at the SBP Refinance rate for 5 to 10
years ranging from (i.e. 2% to 4.5%) plus (0.7% to 1 % ) per annum, which are payable quarterly on the
principal sum of loan and other dues, if any, outstanding from time to time.

The said loans are secured against the hypothecation of specific plant and machinery, aggregating to
Rs. 640.73 million.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
21. DEFERRED LIABILITY
Employees' Gratuity 21.1 23,940 -
23,940 -
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21.1 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its eligible employees. Latest actuarial valuation
was carried out as at June 30, 2018, using the "Projected Unit Credit Method".

Gratuity

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

(a) Movement in the present value of
defined benefit obligation

Provision at July 01,2017 - 139,671
Expense for the year 25,774 5,828
25,774 145,499
Benefit paid (725) (145,499)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan (1,109) -
Provision as at June 30, 2018 23,940
(b) The amount charged in the profit or loss

accounts is as follows

Current service cost 25,774 5,828
(c) Principle acturial assumptions
Discount rate 10%
Salary increase 10%
(d) Comparison for five years
As at June 30, 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Rupees in ‘000

Present value of defined
benefit obligation 23,940 - 139,671 112,164 85,788

Experience adjustment
Acturial (gain) / loss
on obligation (1,109) - 1,184 5,675 8,166

21.2 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, hence, no plan assets are available.
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 406,586 406,433
Accrued liabilities 988,584 687,710
Advances from customers - unsecured 22,720 28,842
Advance from related party
- DL1961 Premium Denim Inc. - unsecured 22.1 5,072 4,032
Staff contribution for vehicle 15,120 3,889
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 22.2 31,936 23,759
Workers' Welfare Fund 22.3 12,026 10,606
Tax deducted at source 5,495 7,023
1,487,539 1,172,294

22.1 Represents advance received in respect of expenses to be incurred on behalf of the related party.

22.2 Workers' Profits Participation Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 23,759 21,329
Allocation for the year 30 31,935 23,759
Interest on WPPF 30 1,856 1,446
57,550 46,534
Payments made during the year (25,614) (22,775)
31,936 23,759

22.3 Workers' Welfare Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,605 57,929
Allocation for the period 30 6,684 5,258
17,289 63,187
Reversal of WWF - (47,177)
Payments made during the period (5,263) (5,404)
12,026 10,606

23. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term finance - SBP's EOP and LTFF 7,120 6,871
Short-term running finances 10 49
Short-term loans 9,797 8,308

16,927 15,228
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24.1
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Short term loans 24.1 1,570,000 1,670,000
Short term loans
Export refinance-Il 24.1.1 550,000 550,000
Export refinance-l| 24.1.2 420,000 520,000
Export refinance-Il 24.1.3 - 250,000
Export refinance-l| 2414 250,000 250,000
Export refinance-II 24.1.5 350,000 100,000
1,570,000 1,670,000

24.1.1 During the year, the Company arranged a facility for short-term loan under export refinance, amounting

to Rs. 550 million (2017: Rs. 550 million), from a commercial bank on mark-up basis, repayable by August
31, 2018. The said export refinance facility is secured against the first pari passu registered hypothecation
charge on movables and receivables of the Company, aggregating to Rs. 937.5 million.

The said export refinance carries mark-up at the rate of 0.40% per annum (2017: 0.40% per annum)
above the SBP's Minimum Export Refinance rate, payable quarterly.

24.1.2 During the year, the Company arranged a facility for short-term loan under export refinance, amounting

to Rs. 420 million (2017: Rs. 520 million), from a commercial bank on mark-up basis, repayable by
August 31, 2018. It is secured against the first pari passu registered hypothecation charge on movables
and receivables of the Company, aggregating to Rs.1,250 million.

The said export refinance carries mark-up at the rate of 0.40% per annum (2017: 0.40% per annum)
above the SBP's Minimum Export Refinance rate, payable quarterly.

24.1.3 During the year, the Company arranged a facility for short-term loan under export refinance, amounting

to Rs. Nil million (2017: Rs. 250 million), from a commercial bank on mark-up basis, repayable by August
31, 2018. The said export refinance facility is secured against the first pari passu registered hypothecation
charge on movables and receivables of the Company, aggregating to Rs.1,377 million.

The said export refinance carries mark-up at the rate of 0.40% per annum (2017: 0.40 % per annum)
above the SBP's Minimum Export Refinance rate, payable quarterly.

24.1.4 During the year, the Company arranged a facility for short-term loan under export refinance, amounting

to Rs.250 million (2017: Rs. 250 million), from a commercial bank on mark-up basis, repayable by
August 31, 2018. The said export refinance facility is secured against the first pari passu registered
hypothecation charge on movables and receivables of the Company, aggregating to Rs.312.5 million.

The said export refinance carries mark-up at the rate of 0.40% per annum (2017: 0.40 % per annum)
above the SBP's Minimum Export Refinance rate, payable quarterly.

o
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24.1.5 During the year, the Company arranged a facility for short-term loan under export refinance, amounting

25.

25.1

25.2

253

254

26.

26.1

to Rs. 350 million (2017: Rs. 100 million), from a commercial bank on mark-up basis, repayable by
August 31, 2018. The said export refinance facility is secured against the first pari passu registered
hypothecation charge on movables and receivables of the Company, aggregating to Rs. 625 million.

The said export refinance carries mark-up at the rate of 0.40% per annum (2017: 0.40 % per annum)
above the SBP's Minimum Export Refinance rate, payable quarterly.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS = =oeeeeee Rupees in ‘000 .........

Contingencies
299,069

Outstanding counter guarantees 159,354

Commitments

Commitments in respect of Building on leasehold land at the end of the period amounted to Rs. 29
million (June 30, 2017: Rs. 44.657 million).

Outstanding letters of credit at the end of the period amounted to Rs. 334.599 million (June 30, 2017:
Rs. 442.847 million).

Post dated cheques issued in favour of Custom Authorities aggregating to Rs. 315.925 million
(June 30, 2017: Rs. 231.826 million), against various statutory nofifications.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
TURNOVER Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
Exports 26.1 7,813,569 6,487,504
Local 558,419 533,342
8,371,988 7,020,846
Less:
Sales returns - (8,147)
Sales commission / trade discount (132,002) (106,173)
(132,002) (114,320
8,239,986 6,906,526

Included herein is a sum of Rs. 711.962 (2017: Rs. 530.698) million, representing indirect exports made
by the company during the current year, either by arranging inland letters of credit or standardized
purchase orders from certain direct exporters in favour of the Company, pursuant to the Banking Policy
and Regulation Department (BPRD) Circulars No. 24 and 31 dated June 28, 1999 and August 13, 1999
respectively, issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.
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27.  COST OF SALES

Opening stock - finished goods
Cost of goods manufactured

Less: Closing stock - finished goods

27.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Fuel and power

Weaving, stitching, finishing and printing charges
Repairs and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Telephone and telex

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Water charges

Transportation

Depreciation

Amortization

Security charges

Travelling, boarding and lodging
Miscellaneous

Opening work-in-process
Closing work-in-process

27.1.1 Raw and packing materials consumed
Opening stock
Purchases
Duty draw back on export sales

Closing stock

27.1.2 Stores and spares consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

- _______________________________________________\

ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITE

27.1

27.1.1
27.1.2
27.1.3

7.1.2
8.1

June 30,

2018

June 30,
2017

Rupees in ‘000 .........

155,928 145,742
7,488,056 6,177,049
7,643,984 6,322,791
(195,818) (155,928)
7,448,166 6,166,863
3,870,412 3,304,637
294,087 254,980
1,993,233 1,510,847
660,394 608,742
19,202 10,934
33,407 22,603
7,846 8,471
4,946 4,588
3,613 2,520
10,717 11,523
100,033 86,656
23,629 19,092
429,732 404,129
1,519 127
7,823 8,969
189 261
7,291 4,505
7,468,073 6,263,584
650,583 564,048
(630,600) (650,583)
7,488,056 6,177,049
488,756 604,831
4,442,265 3,470,381
(265,688) (281,819)
4,176,577 3,188,562
4,665,333 3,793,393
(794,921) (488,756)
3,870,412 3,304,637
167,551 156,610
335,162 265,921
502,713 422,531
(208,626) (167,551)
294,087 254,980

o
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27.1.3 Included herein a sum of Rs.21.036 (2017: Rs.4.755) million is respect of staff gratuity.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
28. DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 28.1 10,818 7,795
Insurance 2,191 1,630
Freight and transportation 81,312 59,000
Export development surcharge and clearing charges 29,645 25,583
Postage, courier and stamps 28,445 30,409
Depreciation 7.1.2 934 876
Travelling, boarding and lodging 14,536 14,331
Advertisement and publicity 8,154 7,806
Sales office Expenses 8,375 9,167
Testing / Quality control charges 9,063 8,719
Miscellaneous 5,084 4,979
198,557 170,295

28.1 Included herein a sum of Rs. 0.813 (2017: Rs. 0.155) million is respect of staff gratuity.

29.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 29.1 52,312 46,959
Depreciation 7.12 34,910 32,838
Amortization 8.1 132 11
Legal and professional charges 19,401 12,169
Auditors' remuneration 29.2 1,829 1,500
Donations 29.3 5,580 5,667
Miscellaneous 13,638 5,179

127,802 104,323

29.1 Included herein a sum of Rs. 3.923 (2017: Rs. 0.917) million is respect of staff gratuity.

29.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 875 800
Fee for half yearly review 125 125
Special certification and advisory services 270 105
Tax services 240 220
Out-of-pocket expenses 180 166
Sindh sales tax 139 84

1,829 1,500

29.3 Includes amount of Rs. 5.520 million paid to Abdul Sattar EDHI Foundation. Directors or their spouses
do not have any interest in the donees to whom donations were made.

Y ¢ AmCC——
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30.

31.

32,

33.

33.1

33.2

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Profits Participation Fund (WPPF)
Workers' Welfare Fund
Interest on WPPF

OTHER INCOME

Scrap sales

Gain on sale of fixed assets

Exchange gain - net

Reversal of WWF Provision

FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on secured
Long term finance

Short term running finances
Short term loans

Bank charges

TAXATION

Current
Prior

ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITE

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
22.2 31,935 23,759
22.3 6,684 5,258
22.2 1,856 1,446
40,475 30,463
29,204 28,735
1,775 1,276
236,600 22,586
- 47177
267,579 99,774
27,611 23,043
205 175
34,474 40,457
62,290 63,675
30,198 24,528
92,488 88,203
83,546 17,053
- (337)
83,546 16,716

The relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these
financial statements as the total income of the Company falls under the final tax regime and is taxed
at a rate of 1% (2017: 1%) on total sales, including scrap sales.

Management has provided sufficient tax provision in financial statements in accordance with the Income
Tox Ordinance, 2001. Following is the comparison of tax provision as per accounts vis a vis tax assessment

for the last three years :

For the year 30 June 2017
For the year 30 June 2016
For the year 30 June 2015

Tax provision as
per Accounts

......... Rupees in ‘000

17,053
22,099
17,849

Tax
Assessment

17,053
21,763
17,592

o




ANNUAL REPORT

.ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED 2018

34. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic / diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the net profit for the year after taxation
with the number of Ordinary shares issued by the Company.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

Profit after tax for the year 516,531 429,437
Number of shares
Number of Ordinary shares 84,000 84,000
(Rupees)
Earnings per shares - basic and diluted (Rupees) 6.15 5.11
June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

35.  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before tax 600,077 446,153

Adjustments for non cash charges and other items:

Depreciation/amortisation 467,227 437,981
Provision for gratuity 25,774 5,828
Reversal of WWF provision - (47,177)
Finance costs 92,488 88,203
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (1,775) (1,276)
583,714 483,559
Profit before working capital changes 1,183,791 929,712

(Increase) in current assets

Stores and spares (47,046) (11,463)
Stock-in-trade (356,753) (26,521)
Trade debts (311,452) (461,215)
Loans and advances 6,291 (202)
Trade deposits (3,095) 941
Other receivables (121,852) (185,188)
Sales tax refundable 87,807 (8,911)
(746,100) (692,559)
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 315,245 219,997
Cash generated from operations 752,936 457,150

36.  UNAVAILED CREDIT FACILITIES

Short term Running Finances 1,250,000 1,250,000
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37. REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2018 2017

Chief Chief
Executive Director Executives Executive Director Executives

Rupees in ‘000

Managerial remuneration 6,606 - 41,140 6,546 - 32,306
Medical 654 - 4,112 654 - 3,214
Bonus 600 - 3,590 600 - 2,981
Utilities - - - - - -
Retirement benefits 600 - 3,078 600 - 1,623
8,460 - 51,920 8,400 - 40,124
Number of persons 1 - 26 1 - 18

37.1 The Chief Executive and certain executives are provided with the free use of Company maintained cars
in terms of their employment.

37.2 Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of fee for attending meetings to Non-
Executive Directors was Rs. 0.460 ( June 30, 2017: Rs. 0.200 ) million.

38.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (including Interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and equity risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s senior management provides policies for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of financial
derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

The Board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised
below:

38.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk,
such as equity risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include trade debtors, trade payables, bank balances, long-
term financing and short-term borrowings.

38.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in the market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from long-term
and short-term borrowings obtained with floating rates. The Company is currently exposed to interest
rate risk as some of the borrowings of the Company are at floating rate of interest. All the borrowings
of the Company are obtained in the functional currency.

Sensitivity Analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate by 100
bps, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax.

WA |
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Increase / Effect on
decrease in profit
basis points Rupees in '000

June 30, 2018 +10 (21)
-10 21
June 30, 2017 +10 (18)

-10 18

38.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company'’s exposure to the risk of changes in
foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expenses
are denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional currency). The Company's exposure
to foreign currency risk is as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

Trade debts 1,627,853 1,391,148
Cash and bank balances 6,362 7,478
Trade and other payables (62,691) (73,460)

1,571,524 1,325,166

The following significant exchange rates have been
applied at the reporting dates:
Exchange rates (PKR/USD) 121.40 104.80

The foreign currency exposure is partly covered as the majority of the Company’s billing is
determined in dollars which is converted into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the
transaction date.

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US

dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before
tax.
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Change in Effect on
US Dollar  profit / (loss)
Rate (%) Rupees in '000

June 30,2018 +10 157,152
-10 (157,152)
June 30, 2017 +10 132,517
-10 (132,517)

38.1.3 Equity risk
At the reporting date, the Company is not exposed to any such risk.
38.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk
indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular
industry.

The Company is mainly exposed to credit risk on trade debts and bank balances. The Company seeks
to minimise the credit risk exposure through having exposure only to customers considered credit worthy
and obtaining securities where applicable. As of the reporting date, the Company is exposed to credit
risk on the following assets:

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

Note  ......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
Long-term loans 9 7,644 3,990
Long term deposits 10 1,566 1,686
Trade debts 13 1,807,006 1,495,554
Trade deposits 15 7,699 4,604
Other receivable 16 3,671 2,214
Bank balances 17 85,165 63,218
1,912,751 1,571,266

38.2.1 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates:
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
......... Rupees in ‘000 .........
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 1,807,006 1,495,554

Bank Balances

Al+ PACRA 76,600 60,223
A1+ JCR - VIS 8,081 1,633
F1 FITCH 484 1,362

85,165 63,218

38.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due.

The Company applies prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At the reporting date the Company
has unavailed credit facility of Rs. 1,250 (2017: Rs.1,250) million.

Table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

On Less than 31012 1t05 Above Total
Demand 3 months months years 5 years
Rupees in ‘000
Long term financing - 18,056 67,560 460,102 353,172 898,890
Trade & other payables 828,286 538,043 43,961 - - 1,410,290
Unclaimed dividend 2,100 - - - - 2,100
Accrued mark-up - 16,927 - - - 16,927
Short term borrowings - 1,570,000 - - - 1,570,000
2018 830,386 2,143,026 111,521 460,102 353,172 3,898,207
On Less than 31012 1105 Above Total
Demand 3 months months years 5 years
Rupees in ‘000
Long term financing - 650 37,742 461,248 352,259 851,899
Trade & other payables 574,644 485,134 38,254 - - 1,098,032
Unclaimed dividend 2,171 - - - - 2,171
Accrued mark-up - 15,228 - - - 15,228
Short term borrowings - 1,670,000 - - - 1,670,000
2017 576,815 2,171,012 75,996 461,248 352,259 3,637,330

Effective interest / yield rates for the financial liabilities are mentioned in the respective notes to the
financial statements.
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38.4 Capital management

39.

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended June
30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders add
reserves.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

Long term financing 813,274 813,507
Current maturities of long-term financing 85,616 38,392
Short term loans 1,570,000 1,670,000
Cash and bank balances (86,896) (63,232)
Net debt 2,381,994 2,458,667
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 840,000 840,000
Reserves 5,260,145 4,918,905
Total capital 6,100,145 5,758,905
Capital and net debt 8,482,139 8,217,572
Gearing ratio 28.08% 29.92%

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of associated undertakings, directors and key management
personnel.

The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related
parties.

Transactions and balances with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements as mentioned below are entered under normal commercial terms:
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

......... Rupees in ‘000 .........

Associated undertaking / Common directorship

Sales 1,549,269 1,321,574
Reimbursement of expenses 74,822 61,988
Purchases 3,694 -
Services rendered 36,365 10,126
Dividend paid to directors 105,392 136,333

39.1 Following are the associated companies/undertakings with whom the Company had entered into
transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:

S.No  Company Name Basis of Relationship  Aggregate % of
shareholding
1 Casual Sportswear Common directorship NIL
2 Artistic Apparels (Private) Limited Common directorship NIL
3 DL1961 Premium Denim Inc. Common directorship NIL
4 Artistic Fabric & Garments Industries
(Pvi) Limited Common directorship NIL
Premium Distributors Common directorship NIL
6 Warp Weft LLC * Common directorship NIL

* Warp Weft LLC was associated undertaking under common directorship till 23 November 2017.

39.2 Associated Companies Incorporated Outside Pakistan

S.No Name & Address Basis of Chief Executive /  Operational Auditors'
Association Principal Status Opinion
Officer

1. DL1961 Premium Denim Inc., ~ Common Mrs. Maliha Faisal ~ Wholesaler / Un-audited
498 7th Avenue, New York, NY  Directorship Distributors
10018.

2. Premium Distributors, Common  Mr. Muhammad Ali  Trading / Un-audited
Building No. 6EB G24, Directorship Ahmed Distributors
Dubai, UAE.

40. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm'’s length transaction.

Y 70 A
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Fair value hierarchy

The different levels to analyse financial assets carried at fair value have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: Quoted market price
Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable); and
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables)

As of the reporting date, the Company does not have any financial assets carried at fair value
that required categorization in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
............ Units ............
41. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Spinning
Number of rotors installed 864 864
Number of spindles installed 20,448 20,448
Capacity of yarn (Lbs.) 18,232,500 18,232,500
Actual production of yarn (Lbs.) 17,235,279 15,974,120
Weaving
Number of looms installed 160 154
Capacity of fabric (meters) 19,970,250 19,646,250
Actual production of fabric (meters) 19,114,648 19,316,148
Garments

The plant capacity of this division is indeterminable due to multi product plant involving varying
processes of manufacturing and run length of order lots.

Under utilisation of available capacity for spinning and weaving was due to normal maintenance,
variation in production mix, global recession, and type of quality produced.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
42, NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
At year end - Total 499 494
At year end - Factory 452 446
Average for the year - Total 480 500
Average for the year - Factory 433 450

__________________________________________________\y
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43. GENERAL

43.1 Subsequent to year ended June 30, 2018, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on
September 29, 2018 has proposed final cash dividend at the rate of Rs. 2.50 per ordinary
share of Rs. 10 each, amounting to Rs. 210.000 million (2017: Rs. 2.10/- per share amounting
to Rs. 176.400 million) for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting.

43.2  Under section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), the Company is obligated
to pay tax at a prescribed rate on its accounting profit before tax, if it derives profit for a tax
year but does not distribute prescribed level of such profits within six months of the end of the
tax year, through cash dividend.

43.3 These financial statements have been authorised for issue on September 29, 2018 by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

43.4 Certain prior year figures have been reclassified for better presentation. However, there are
no material reclassifications to report.

43.5 Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

%«& é/ @&

Faisal Ahmed Muhammad Igbal-ur-Rahim Sagheer Ahmed
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORM OF PROXY

I/We of
being member(s) of ARTISTIC DENIM MILLS LIMITED
and holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio/CDC Account
No. hereby appoint Folio/CDC Account No.
of CNIC No. or Passport No. or failing whom
Folio/CDC Account No. of CNIC No.
or Passport No. who is also a member of the Company as my/our proxy to

attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 26th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company to be held on Saturday, October 27, 2018 at 02:30 PM and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2018.

Witnesses: 1.Signature

Name: Rs 5/-
Address: Revenue
CNIC or Passport No. Stamp

2. Signature Signature

(Signature should agree with the specimen
Name: signature registered with the Company).
Address:
CNIC or Passport No. CNIC or Passport No.

IMPORTANT

1. This form of proxy, duly completed and singed, must be deposited at the Company's Shares Registrar’s
Office not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

2. This form should be signed by the Member or by his/her attorney duly authorised in writing. If the
Member is a Corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

3. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint any other Member as his/her
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf except that a corporation may appoint a person who
is not a Member.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities:
In addition to the above, following requirements have to be met:

() The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC or
Passport Numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

(i) Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

(iii) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

(iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the
Company.
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www.jamapunji.pk

4l Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

[EE Knowledge center
Risk profiler*
By Financial calculator

fk Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

n Jamapuniji application for
mobile device

[Z] Online Quizzes

K v
Jamapunjl.pk @jamapunji_pk
*Moblie apps are aiso avallable for d 1 for androdd and los




Plot No. 5-9, 23-26, Sector 16, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan.
Tel : (92 21) 111-236-236 Fax: (92 21)3505-4652
Email: sales@admdenim.com Web: www.admdenim.com
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